
AYES: NOES: ABSTAIN: 

ADOPTED: REJECTED: STRICKEN: 

INTRODUCED: September 12, 2022 

AN ORDINANCE No. 2022-259 

To authorize the Chief Administrative Officer, for and on behalf of the City of Richmond, to 
execute a Virginia Transit Association Cooperation Agreement between the Virginia Transit 
Association and the City of Richmond, for the purpose of funding the City’s proposed Richmond 
Redevelopment and Housing Authority Van-Share project to provide eligible Richmond 
Redevelopment and Housing Authority residents with flexible transportation for employment and 
associated childcare. 

Patrons – Mayor Stoney and Ms. Lambert

Approved as to form and legality 
by the City Attorney 

PUBLIC HEARING:  SEP 26 2022  AT 6 P.M. 

THE CITY OF RICHMOND HEREBY ORDAINS: 

§ 1. That the Chief Administrative Officer, for and on behalf of the City of Richmond,

be and is hereby authorized to execute a Virginia Transit Association Cooperation Agreement 

between the Virginia Transit Association and the City of Richmond, for the purpose of funding 

the City’s proposed Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority Van-Share project to 

provide eligible Richmond Redevelopment and Housing Authority residents with flexible 

transportation for employment and associated childcare. The Virginia Transit Association 
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Cooperation Agreement shall be approved as to form by the City Attorney and shall be 

substantially in the form of the  document attached to this ordinance. 

§ 2. This ordinance shall be in force and effect upon adoption.
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Approved as to form: 

_________________
Andrew A. Gore 
Assistant City Attorney 



 

 

1108 East Main St., Suite 1108, Richmond, VA 23219   (804) 643-1166   Fax: (804) 643-1155    

 
April 29, 2022 

 
 
 
Kelli Rowan-Transit Planning and Mobility Program Manager 
Dironna Moore Clarke, Administrator OETM 
City of Richmond 
1500 E. Franklin Street 
Richmond, VA  23219 
 
Dear Kelli and Dironna: 
 
 On behalf of the Virginia Transit Association (VTA), I am pleased to inform you 
that your Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Zero Transit Fare for Working Families Grant Program 
application has been approved. Your project has been awarded a grant in the amount of 
$279,000 to fund project activities specific to public van pool services. The grant award 
is contingent on the approval by the Virginia Department of Social Services (VDSS) and 
full execution of a Sole Source Agreement between VDSS and VTA. 

 
Should Richmond OETM (Sub-Recipient) wish to accept the grant and proceed 

with the Project, you will be asked to provide VTA with a formal grant acceptance letter 
as well as a signed Cooperative Agreement. Please be advised that reasonable 
administrative expenses, such as staff time to prepare monthly requests for 
reimbursement and quarterly status reports, are eligible as well as community 
educational outreach about the existence and benefits of the program. Additional costs 
including commercial advertising, office space, and electronic office supplies such as 
printers and computers are not eligible for funding. The monthly grant reimbursement 
request award is contingent on VTA’s review and approval.  

 
To complete the agreement, VTA requests that in addition to the formal grant 

acceptance letter, the Cooperation Agreement be signed and returned immediately so 
that the application can be expedited. This will obligate the grant funding to the Project 
before the start of the FY23 fiscal year.  This Cooperation Agreement outlines roles and 
responsibilities and key program requirements mutually agreed to by VTA and the Sub-
Recipient. Once received, please complete the signature process within two weeks. 

 
 

PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS  
Please refer to the Zero Transit Fare for Working Families Grant Program 

Guidelines (available at https://vatransit.com/TANFGrant) for a list of the program 
requirements.  
 

 Project Eligibility: All projects must solely serve TANF eligible persons 
and/or individuals with a dependent child whose income is at or below 200% 
of the federal poverty level, and subrecipients must be able to document and 
verify TANF and income eligibility.  



 
 Reimbursement: The Zero Transit Fare grant program is a reimbursement 

program. As a subrecipient to VTA, you will be required to pay expenses 
directly and then submit a request for reimbursement through VTA on a 
monthly basis. Please note that no funds for which reimbursement will be 
requested can be expended prior to full execution of a Sole Source 
Agreement between VTA and VDSS. 
 

 Outcome Reporting; Quarterly Status Reports: The subrecipient will 
submit a monthly outcome report along with the monthly reimbursement 
request.  In addition, the subrecipient shall submit quarterly supplemental 
information relevant to programmatic progress for inclusion in VTA’s state-
mandated quarterly progress reports. This information will inform VTA’s 
quarterly reports due no later than August 15, November 15, February 15, 
and May 15.  Reports will contain detailed descriptions of program activities 
and outcomes.  

 
 Project Records: The subrecipient must maintain full and accurate records 

with respect to the project, including but not limited to TANF eligibility 
screening and transit ridership. 

 
Thank you for your work in public transit and for advancing your project through 

the ZeroTransit Fare for Working Families Grant Program. We look forward to seeing 
your project implemented.  

 
Should you have any questions, please contact me by phone at (804) 643-1166 

or by email at TANFgrant@vatransit.com.  Laura Kitchin Greenleaf, TANF Grant 
Coordinator, and I will schedule an orientation for you and other subrecipients before 
FY23 begins in July. 
 
       Sincerely, 
 

        
       Lisa Guthrie 
       Executive Director 
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